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The site and excavations

Haghia Triada is a multi-phase site in western Messara located only 3 km from Phaistos,
intensively occupied throughout the Bronze Age and then sporadically until the modern age. It is
famous for having yielded some of the most significant evidence of the Minoan civilisation that has
come down to us.

Identified by F. Halbherr in 1900, it was almost entirely excavated between 1902 and 1914
by the Italian Mission in Crete. Research resumed on the initiative of Prof. V. La Rosa and the
University of Catania under the auspices of the Italian Archaeological School of Athens between
1977 and 1999 and again between 2006 and 2012.

The current archaeological area, of limited extent, is structured around three main nuclei: the
hill of S. Giorgio Galata and the area of the Piazzale dei Sacelli to the south, the area of the Village

to the north, and the sector of the necropolis to the north-east.

The Prepalatial and Protopalatial Periods

The earliest occupation dates back to the beginning of the Prepalatial period (3300 BC) and
is documented by an exceptional ceramic deposit of a ceremonial nature located near the ‘Piazzale
dei Sacelli’, probably made at the time of the settlement's foundation, from which come some of the
oldest known clay models of dwellings on Crete to date.

Between the Prepalatial and Protopalatial periods (2500-1700 B.C.) lies the construction and
use of the tholos Tombs A and B of the necropolis, among the largest and richest in grave goods
found on Crete to date. Used as collective burials for almost a millennium, it is likely that they were
intended to house the deads of the communities scattered in the large surrounding area. They preserve
significant evidence of the intense ritual activities that took place outside the burial chambers,
including libations, secondary depositions within ossuaries, and collective rituals probably associated

with dancing and betyl worship.

The Neopalatial Period



In the Neopalatial Period (1700-1450 B.C.) the settlement, already structured in proto-urban
forms in the previous phase, experienced an exceptional architectural flowering. This took the form,
first and foremost, of the construction of the 'Royal Villa', the largest monumental building of its kind
known to date on Crete. In an excellent state of preservation, it was articulated in the form of an 'L
on the north and west margins of the hill of St. George Galata and performed ceremonial, storage and
administrative functions. The former took place in the so-called 'Quartieri Signorili', characterized by
monumental rooms covered with alabastrine plaster and adorned with columned porticoes. Among
the spaces used for ritual purposes, room 14 stands out, a narrow room completely frescoed with
sacred scenes. The vast monumental squares around the Villa also hosted collective ceremonies,
perhaps similar to those depicted in relief on the famous steatite rhyta found at the site (Fig. 1, The
‘Rython dei mietitori’). Warehousing and administrative activities are documented by the thousands
of Linear A cretulae and tablets recovered from the Villa (Fig. 2, Linear A tablet from the Royal
Villa), which constitute the most conspicuous Neo-Palatial archive that has come down to us. The
redistribution of resources fuelled a flourishing artisanal activity concentrated in the area of the
Village and documented, among other things, by the most impressive pottery kiln on Crete, located
to the east of the Villa. The north-eastern sector of the settlement also underwent an important
architectural revival in this period, with the construction of the Breccia Mace Complex, probably
connected to the preparation of the funerary depositions that took place in the Tomb of the Ori, so

named for the precious grave goods (Fig. 3, Zoomorphic pendants from the ‘Tomba degli Or1’).

The Postpalatial Period

The Neopalatial Period came to a traumatic end around 1450 BC with a vast fire, possibly
triggered by an earthquake. Between c. 1350 and 1200 BC, however, building activity resumed with
great force, making Haghia Triada the center with the highest concentration of monumental buildings
on the entire island. They are grouped into two nuclei. The first comprises three buildings with a
strong ceremonial character (the Megaron ABCD, the Stoa FG, and the Sacellum H), which are
arranged in an arc around the Square of the Sacellums. The second core occupies the area of the
Village where two urban phases can be distinguished. The more recent and monumental one
comprises a set of six buildings (the Agora Stoa, the Megaron P, the North-West and West Buildings,
the House of the Progressively Added Rooms, and the Bastion) partly preserved only at the
foundation level, set around the so-called ‘Agora’, an enclosed courtyard accessible by a monumental
propylaeum. Prominent among the buildings is the Agora Stoa, a large two-storey colonnaded

complex with an obvious storage purpose (Fig. 4, Stoa of the Agora from the south-east). To the same



period dates the recovery of the necropolis, from where the famous sarcophagus painted with funerary

scenes, representing a unicum of Minoan art, originates (Fig. 5, The painted sarcophagus).

The Historic Age

At the end of the 13th century BC, the settlement was abandoned. Only the Piazzale dei Sacelli
continued to be frequented with depositions of clay and bronze statuettes. This frequentation
continued, albeit with interruptions, until the height of the Hellenistic period, when epigraphs attest
to the cult of the god Velchanos, a Cretan variant of Zeus. After the destruction of the neighboring
polis of Phaistos in 150 B.C. the site was definitively abandoned, and human presence, apart from a
rural building from the Roman period, would only resume in the 13th century, with the planting of
the church of St. George Galata and its cemetery.
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O x®pog Kat 01 avVaoKAPES

M moAvpaocikn 8€on ot dvtik Meooapd, mov Bpioketar poig 3 yAp. amd ™ Pootd, 1
omoio. kotowknOnke evratkd xob' OAn ™ owdpkew ™ Emoyng tov Xoikod ko ot cuvéyswa
OTOPAdIKA LEXPL TN GLYYPOVN EMOYN, £ivol SLACTIUN Yol TO YEYOVOG OTL £XEL OMGEL PEPIKE OO T
ONUOVTIKOTEPO GTOLYEIR TOV LIVOIKOD TOALTIGUOD TTOV £XOVV PTACEL GE EUAC.

Avayvopiotnke and tov F. Halbherr to 1900 kot avackdenke oyeddv €€ oLoKApov peTald
1902 ko 1914 and v Itolkn Anoctoln oty Kpntn. H épevva cuveyiotnke pe tpotofoviia tov
kaOnynt V. La Rosa kot tov IMavemomuiov g Katdvie vrd v oryide g Itaiwng
Apyoaroroykng Xxoing ABnvav petadd 1977 kot 1999 ko Eava peta&y 2006 ko 2012.

O onuepvog apyooroyIKOG YMPOGC, TEPLOPICUEVIG EKTAONG, dlopBpdveTal YOp® amd TPELG
KOPLovg TupPNVeS: To A0Po Tov Ayiov IN'ewpyiov IN'ohatd ko v meproyn ¢ Piazzale dei Sacelli ota

VOTLO, TNV TTEPLOYN TOL Y®PLOV 6T BOPELN KO TOV TOUEN TG VEKPOTOANG GTO. FOPELONVOTOALK.

I[poavaKTopIK] KO TPMTOOVUKTOPIKI] TEPI0OOG



H apyoadtepn katoiknom ypovoroyeitar oty apyn g [poavaxtopikng meprodov (3300
1.X.) Kol TEKUNPLOVETOL omd €vol EEAPETIKO KEPOUKO AmODEUN TELETOVPYIKOV YOPOUKTHPO TOV
Bpioketar kovtd oty "Piazzale dei Sacelli", to onoio mbavdg KoTooKeLAGTNKE KOTA TNV 10pLGT TOV
OIKIGHOV, OO TO OTOI0 TPOEPYOVTOL UEPIKE Omd TO TOANIOTEPU YVOOTO UEYPL GNUEPA THAVA
OLOIDOUATO KATOWKI®V otV Kpnn.

Meto&d g Ilpoavaxtopikng kot ¢ [pwtoavaktopikng mepiddov (2500-1700 w.X.)
Bpioketor M Kotookevyy Kot ypron TV OoAwTdv Taemv A kot B g vekpomoing, oamd Ttovg
LEYOAVTEPOVG KOl TAOLGLOTEPOLS GE KTepiopata mov Exovv PBpebel atnv Kpnm péypt onuepa. Ot
OULOOTKEG TOPEG TTOV YPNOIOTOMONKaY Yoo oYedOV o yihetia, eivon mhoavo 6t mpoopiloviay va
0TEYAGOVY TOVG VEKPOVG KOWVOTNTMOV Otd Lo LEYAAT YOP® TTEPLOYN. AlTnPOoVV GNUOVTIKEG EVOEIEELG
YW TIG £VIOVEG TEAETOVPYIKEG SPACTNPLOTNTEG TTOV AQUPAVOY YDPO EKTOG TOV TAPIKOV BoAGU®V,
CLUUTEPIAOUPAVOUEVOV  OTOVOMVY, JeLTEPOYEVDV  evamobBécemV HECH GE  OCTEOPLAGKIN KO

GLALOYIK®V TEAETOVPYLOV OV TBAVAOS GyeTilovtay e xopod Kot Aatpeia Tov Pottvrov.

H Neoavaktopikn mepiodog

Koatd ™ Neoavaxtopwn ITepiodo (1700-1450 n.X.) o owicpdc, o omoiog elye non doundel pe
TPMOTOACTIKES LOPPES GTNV TPOTNYOVLEV PACT|, YVADPLIGE Lo EEAPETIKN OPYLTEKTOVIKT AvOion. Avt)
TPE TN HOPON, TPMOTO Kot KOPo, TS katackevng ¢ "Baciukng ‘Eraving", tov peyoidtepov
LVNUELKOD KTIpiov Tov €idovg tov mov givol yvwotod uéypt onuepa ommv Kpntm. Ze dpiom
Katdotoon owtnpnong, apbpdbnke pe ) popen "I 610 Bopero ko dutikd mepBdplo ToV AOPOL
tov Ayiov Tlewpyiov T'odotd kot ekteEl0VOE TEAETOLPYIKES, OMOOMKEVTIKEG KO OLOIKNTIKEG
Aertovpyiec. Ov mpodteg AdpPovav yopo ota Aeyouevo "Quartieri  Signorili", to omoia
xopokTNPiloviay oamd UVNUEWKA OMUATIO KOALUPEVE HE OAGPOCTPO KOU GTOAICUEVO LE
Klovoototyieg. MeTa&d TV ydP®V oL ¥PNGUYLOTOLOVVIAV Y10, TEAETOVPYIKOVG GKOTOVG, Eexmpilel
aiBovoa 14, éva 6tevd dSOUATIO TANP®S TOLYOYPAPNUEVO LE 1EPEG OKNVES. O1 TEPACTIEG LVNULELOKES
mhateieg YOp® omd 1N Pila erio&evovoay emiong GUAALOYIKES TEAETEC, IGMG TAPOUOLES e EKEIVEC TOV
amewoviovtal avayAvea otny Tepipnun putd and oteatitn mwov Ppédnke oty mepoyn (Ew. 1, To
"Rython dei mietitori"). Ot amoOnKevTIKEG Kot S10IKNTIKEG SPAGTNPLOTNTEG TEKUNPLOVOVTOL OO TIG
YMadeg kpNTideg ko mivakideg [pappikng A mov avacvpdnkav and t Bida (Ew. 2, TTvokida
Ipoppikng A and ™ Baciiikn Bika), ot omoieg amotehovVv 10 o EULQAVEG VEOOVAKTOPIKO apyElo Tov
pog €xer mepieAfet. H avakatavoun tov moépwv Ttpo@oddTnoe o akpalovca Proteyvikn
dpacTNPLOTNTA, 1] OO0 EMIKEVTPOONKE GTNV TEPLOYN TOL YMPLOV KOl TEKUNPUOVETOL, LETAED ALV,
Ao TOV Mo EVIVTOGLOKO Kepapkd KAIPavo g Kpnng, mov Bpicketan avatoiikd g émaving. O

Bopeloavatoiiodg TOPENS TOV OIKIGHOD VITEGTT EMIONG L0 GNUOVTIKT OPYLTEKTOVIKY] OVAVEMCT| KOTE



™V TePiodo TH, HE TNV KOTOOKELT] TOL GLYKPOTHUATOS TV Maccalmy Breccia, mov mboavag
OULVOEETAL UE TNV TPOETOLLOGIN TOV TAPIKOV evomobiécemv mov Elafav ydpa otov Tago tov Ori,

oV ovoudotnke €161 Adym TtV moALTIHOV KTtepopdtov (Ew. 3, Zoopopeo mepianta and tov
"Tomba degli Ori").

H petavaxtopun nepiodog

H Neoavaxtopikn Iepiodog éane tpavpatikd yopm oto 1450 m.X. pe pio peydan mopkoyd,
mov mhovmg mpokindnke and ceopd. Metad tov 1350 kar tov 1200 n.X. mepimov, ®oT660, N
O1KOOOUIKT] OpacTnplOTnTO EMOVIADE e peydan dvvaun, kabiotoviag v Ayio Tprada 1o kévipo
LLE TN LEYOADTEPT] CLYKEVTIPMOOT) LVIUELOKDV KTIPIOV 6 OAOKANPO TO VNGi. ZuyKevip®vovTal 6€ 600
mopnves. O TpdTog amoteleiton amd Tpio KTiplo e Eviovo TeAETOLPYIKO Yapoaktipa (to Méyapo
ABCD, 1 X104 FG xot to Sacellum H), ta omoia givar torofetnuéva og éva t6E0 yopw amnd tnv
mhateio tov Sacellums. O dgbtepog mupfvag KotoAapPavel v mTEPOYN TOL YWOPOV OTOV
dwakpivovtor 600 aoTikéG eacels. H mo mpocpatn kot pvnuetakn mteptlapfavet évo chvolo €6t
ktpiov (T Z10d T Ayopds, to Méyapo P, to Bopetodutikd kat to Avtikd Kripio, v Owkia twv
TPoodevTIKd mpooTifépevey dopatiov kol tov [popaydva) mov datnpovvral v HEPEL LOVO GTO
eninedo tov Oepeliov kol dwtdccovior yopm amd T Agyouevn "Ayopd", po KAEGTH 0LAN
npocPaciun and Eva pvnuetokd tpomvro. EEEyovoa 0o petald tov Ktiplov Katéyel n Xtod g
Ayopdg, Eva PeYEAo S1IOPOPO KIOVOSTOLYEIMOEG CLYKPOTNUA LE TPOPavT amodnkeuTiko okond (Eik.
4, 100 g Ayopds amd To VOTIO0VOTOAKE). TNV 101a Tepiodo ypovoroyeital Kot 1 avaKInon g
VEKPOTOANG, OO TNV OO0 TPOEPYETAL 1| TEPIPTUT GAPKOPAYOS LOYPAPIOUEVN LLE TOPIKES GKNVEG,

OV AVTITPOCHOTELEL Evo, UNicum ¢ pvotkng téxvng (Ew. 5, H {oypapiopuévn capko@dyoq).

H wotopwn emoyn

Y10 TéAn tov 130V owdve w.X., 0 owiopds eykatareipdnke. Movo n Piazzale dei Sacelli
OLVEYLOE VO Elval TOAVCOYVOOTN He amofécelg mAMvav Kot YOAKvov ayoipotidiov. H coxvoémta
0TI CLVEYIOTNKE, OV KO e SLOKOTES, LEYPL TO ATOYELO TNG EAANVICTIKNG TEPLOOOV, OTAV ETMYPAPES
poptupovy TN Aatpeion Tov B0 Bédyavog, pog kpntikng mopoiioyng tov Ao, Metd v
KOTAGTPOPY| TNG YETOVIKNG TOANG ™G Péotm T0 150 m.X., 1 meproyn eykatoreipOnie optoTikd, Kot
N avOpdTIVN Tapovsia, KTOG amd £va aypoTiKd KTIPLo TG pOUAIKNG TEPLOO0L, Oa emavEADEL LOALG

tov 130 auddva, pe ™ eUTELOT NG EKKANGiog Tov Ayiov ['ewpyiov I'ohatd ko Tov vekpoTapeiov Tnge.



